ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 13, 2013
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Harriet Drunmond

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 142

"An Act increasing the nonthly stipend available for students
attending a statewide boarding school operated by a school
district; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 120
“"An Act adjusting pupil transportation funding;, and providing
for an effective date."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 142

SHORT TI TLE: STI PEND FOR STATEW DE BOARDI NG SCHOOL
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTI'S

02/ 25/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 25/ 13 (H EDC, FIN

03/11/13 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/11/13 (H <Bill Hearing Rescheduled to 3/13/13>
03/13/13 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2013



LI NDA SYLVESTER, St aff

Representative Lynn Gattis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the proposed commttee substitute
for HB 142, on behalf of the bill sponsor, Representative
Gattis.

ERI C GEBHART, Superi nt endent

Nenana City Public School District

Nenana, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 142.

CHRI S REI TAN, Superintendent

Galena City School District

Gal ena, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions, during discussion
on HB 142.

DR. NORMAN ECK, Superi nt endent

Nort hwest Arctic Borough School District

Kot zebue, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions, during discussion
of HB 142.

M KE HANLEY, Commi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 142.

SCOTT BALLARD, Superi ntendent

| ditarod Area School District

McG at h, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 142.

LI SA RI EGER

Cook Inlet Tribal Council (CTC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 142.

DOREEN LORENZ, Chair
Fri ends of Jesse Lee Home

Seward, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 142.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2013



8:04:15 AM

CHAI R LYNN GATTIS called the House Education Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:04 am Representatives Gattis, P.
W son, Seaton, Reinbold, and LeDoux were present at the call to
order.

HB 142- STI PEND FOR STATEW DE BOARDI NG SCHOOL

8:04:36 AM

CHAI R GATTI S announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 142, "An Act increasing the nonthly stipend
avai l able for students attending a statew de boarding school
operated by a school district; and providing for an effective
date."

8:05: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 142, |abeled 28-LS0570\C, M schel
3/ 11/ 13.

8:05:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD obj ected for di scussion.

8: 05: 28 AM

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff, Representative Lynn Gattis, Al aska State
Legi slature, said that proposed HB 142 focused on an increase to
the stipends for reinbursenent to school districts which

operated state funded boardi ng school s.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that it would be preferable to
remove the objection before discussion of the proposed CS

8. 06: 20 AM
REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD renoved her objection, and there being
no further objection, Version C was adopted as the working

docunent .

8: 06: 45 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2013



MS. SYLVESTER noted that the State of Alaska currently funded
and operated a boarding school, M. Edgecunbe H gh School, and

that, in 2005, school districts which operated residential
schools were al so recogni zed. These were in Gal ena, Nenana, and
the Bethel Alternative boarding school. In 2005, |legislation
had been passed for a nodest stipend for reinbursenent of
residential costs to these school districts. The rei nmbursed
costs included food, lodging, and full time supervision. She

directed attention to the increased funding in the proposed
commttee substitute, and nentioned that the aforenentioned
school districts were the only districts which qualified for
f undi ng. She | auded the successful results from each of these
school s.

8:08:31 AM

MS. SYLVESTER presented a brief video of the Galena Interior
Learni ng Acadeny.

8:12: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if these were the only boarding
schools in the state.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that there were other boarding schools
operating, and that she woul d further explain.

8:13: 04 AM

M5. SYLVESTER referred to the handout titled "Galena Interior
Learning Acadeny, Residence Life Revenues and Expenditures."”
[Included in nenbers' packets] She directed attention to the
second page, which listed the 26 school districts in 67
communities which were hone for the 181 students. She noved on
to page 4, which listed the offered curriculum She decl ared
that the Acadeny's appeal was as an alternative to very snal
school s or home school i ng.

8:14: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX directed attention to the bottom of page 2
and asked about the Anchorage notation.

MS. SYLVESTER offered her belief that a student could arrive at
the school from the Anchorage area, although they had comunity
ties to another school district. She deferred for further
clarification.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2013



8:15:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for an explanation of the colum
headers on page 2, "Community" and "District of Residence.”

8:16:10 AM

M5. SYLVESTER opined that the "community" was in the school
"district of residence.”

8:16:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON expressed her agreenent.

8:17: 30 AM
MS5. SYLVESTER directed attention to page 1, line 4, of the
proposed committee substitute, Version C. She expl ained that

this would elimnate the original time restriction for stipends
to schools in operation prior to January 1, 2005. She decl ared
that, as the nodel had proved to be successful, the prograns
were encouraged by the State of Al aska. She reported that the
Department of Education and Early Developnent (EED) had
presented a request for proposal (RFP) to qualify three
addi ti onal progranms for reinbursenent.

8:18: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked why there was not a 5 or 10 year
period for eval uation.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that there were tight checks and bal ances
built into the system She explained that, as the schools which
were approved for the RFP would request funding from the Al aska
State Legislature in the future, it was possible for |legislators
to approve continued funding. She detailed that, in 2005, the

original legislation had provided a snall stipend, which had
remai ned in place until 2011, when it was doubled for a two year
peri od. She pointed out that this would expire on June 30,

2013, and, if no action was taken, the stipend would be halved
for the three participating schools and there would not be any
expansi on for the program

8:20:47 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2013



REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON, recalling that financial support had
been doubled fromits initial amunt, asked to clarify that the
proposed conmttee substitute would triple the initial
r ei mbur senent .

IVS. SYLVESTER clarified that the proposed increase to
rei nbursenent would be 33.5 percent larger than the current
anmount .

8:21:48 AM

CHAIR GATTIS responded to Representative WIson's query and
indicated that further information would be presented, noting
that the intent of the original bill was for contributions to be
made by the participants and their comunities.

8:22: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how the student test results
conpared with public schools.

M5. SYLVESTER deferred to testinony from other w tnesses.
8:23:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the |legislature
woul d have the option to fund individual schools.

MS. SYLVESTER directed attention to the proposed CS, Version C,

page 2, line 21, and she read: "a district under ternms and
conditions required for licensing in the state and as specified
by the departnment in regulation.” She elaborated that the EED
had regul ations and conditions for school funding, sone of which
were listed in Version C, page 1, lines 12 - 13.

8:25:33 AM

CHAIR GATTIS suggested posing the question to the EED
conmi Ssi oner.

8:25:52 AM

MS. SYLVESTER explained that the proposed CS also included
schools with variable length, flexible progranms, although the
school still had to be a 180-day public school.

8:27:10 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 1, I|ine 10 of the
proposed CS and asked if M. Edgeconbe Hi gh School was operated
by a district or the state.

MS. SYLVESTER replied that M. Edgeconbe Hi gh School was not
included in the proposed bill, as it was state owned and was
funded through appropriations from the state operating and
capi tal budgets. She shared that the schools referenced in the
proposed CS were operated by school districts.

8:28:23 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked about the requirenent for a
student dormitory on page 1, line 12, of the proposed CS. She
asked for clarification regarding the students who did not have
the need for a dormtory.

M5. SYLVESTER, in response, said that some students in Galena
lived at home, and these students did not receive a stipend

She pointed out that Chugach School District had a simlar
situation, applied for the aforenentioned RFP, and had subm tted
a letter of support for the proposed bill [Included in menbers'
packet s] .

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked for nore testinony regarding
students living in dormtories and living at hone.

8:30:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if Galena Interior Learning Acadeny
was the only option for high school in Gal ena.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that it was the high school in Gal ena.
8:30: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 1, line 14 and
asked if average daily nenbership (ADM and regular funding were
al so applied for the variable termlength prograns.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that the students would qualify for the
base student allocation, and the school district could seek

rei mbursenent. She deferred to EED for further response.

8:32:56 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2013



MS. SYLVESTER directed attention to page 2, lines 18 - 22, and
explained that this section allowed for a school district to
cooperate with a non-profit organization for the operation of a
boardi ng school on behalf of the school district. She poi nted
out that page 2, line 23, repealed the "preclusion in statute
that a charter school may not have a boardi ng school conponent."”

8:34:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about the rationale for restricting
the ability to contract for the provision of room and board with
only Alaska Native or non-profit organizations, and did not
allow for a bid fromfor-profit organizations.

MS. SYLVESTER def err ed.

CHAIR GATTIS replied that this had been a concern during the
drafting of the bill. She stated that, as the sponsor of the
proposed bill, she would welcone a further expansion for
i ncl usi on of other organizations.

8:35: 35 AM

M5. SYLVESTER directed attention to the fiscal note for the
proposed bill included in nenbers' packets reflects a 33.5
percent increase to the current funding.

8:37: 01 AM

ERI C GEBHART, Super i nt endent, Nenana Gty Public School
District, explained that the Nenana Student Living Center, where
students lived while attending the city school, was a part of
the Nenana City School District. He reported that the facility
had been in operation for 12 years. He stated his support for
the proposed CS for HB 142. He said that the actual costs for
food, housing, and student care were considered in fornulating
the request for a stipend increase. He declared that commtnent
fromthe community was significant, and that community resources
were drawn on to support the facility. He shared that, although
part of the student application required that grades and test
scores be submitted, the primary consideration was for retention
and success for an entire school year. He noted that the school
district had not attained Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) during
the last two years; however, the vast mgjority of students who
remained in the program for at least two years had becone
successful and graduat ed. He noted that data indicated that
students who did not finish school in Nenana, but graduated from

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2013



high school in their honme district, also had a higher |evel of

success. He described the opportunities that the program
of fered students, which included college Ievel math courses, an
excellent music program a student |leadership team work

experiences, and |ocal civic assistance.
8:43: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for quantification to the statenent
that the comunity provided significant support.

MR. GEBHART replied that the Cty of Nenana provided the
financial support for the student housing, and that |ocal
activities and engagenent included the students.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for a conparison of AYP test scores
at the Nenana Hi gh School to those at the schools which the
students had previously attended.

MR. GEBHART replied that the returning student scores indicated
that AYP was being achieved, noting that it took time to raise
the | evel of achievenent.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX restated her question for a conparison of

scores from Nenana H gh School with the students' originating
school s.

MR. GEBHART offered to provide this information to the
conmittee.

8:47:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked what grades were served by the
Nenana boar di ng school

MR. CGEBHART replied that the school was for grades 9-12.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked for the total nunber of students,
and how many were fromthe i mmedi ate ar ea.

MR. GEBHART, in response, stated that there was an enrol | nent of
200 students, with 85 student residents at the living center.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if this enrollnment was for all
grade | evel s.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 13, 2013



MR. GEBHART replied that the enrollnent was for K - 12, and that
there were 10-12 students per grade.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON i nqui red about the application process.

MR. GEBHART expl ained that the parents and students conpl eted an
application, which included a statenent explaining why they
woul d i ke to attend.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked for nore information regarding
the retention rate.

MR. CGEBHART reported that in July, 2008, when he first arrived,
the living center had 40 students and there were now 70
st udent s.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked about the percentage of
retention.

MR. CGEBHART reported that 70 students rermained from an origina
88 students, which approached the goal of 80 percent retention.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked about the nunber of graduating
students each year.

MR. CGEBHART replied that, in 2013, there would be 11 graduates,
and, in 2012, there were about 22 graduates.

8:51:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, directing attention to the variable term
length proposed in the CS, asked how that would affect the
Nenana Hi gh School conpared with the full school year option.

MR. GEBHART replied that Nenana had a full school year program
and would not participate in the variable Iength program He
stated his support for the variable length program at other
schools as it provided additional choices for students.

8:53:11 AM
REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD reported that she was "worried about
long term sustainability and we wanna get a good rate of return

on our investnent." She asked if Nenana Gty School District
anticipated an increase in its AYP.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 10- March 13, 2013



MR. GEBHART replied that the school district endeavored annually
toward this end. He clarified that the priority was for
substantial growh by every student, but the |evel of increase
could be dependent on their educational background and their
wor k et hi c.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD questioned the |ow graduation rate,
citing graduation of only 34 students out of 500 students. She
t hen asked about the cost per student, and whether the parents
contributed. She declared that "it just seens |ike where people
i nvest thenselves, you tend to get, you know, nore buy-in and a
conm tnent. "

MR. CGEBHART questioned the figures cited by Representative
Rei nbol d, pointing out that, although approxinmately 500 students
had attended the Nenana Student Living Center and 134 students
had graduated, virtually all of them had graduated from high
school somewhere. He enphasized that there was a very high
graduation rate of students who had attended the center.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD stated that the Anchorage Schoo
District had a 70 percent graduation rate. She repeated her
guestion regardi ng parental contributions.

MR. GEBHART explained that the stipend provided for room and
board at the living center, while the students paid for personal
entertai nment and needs. He reported that the State of Al aska
rei nbursed the school district for student travel to the schoo

at the beginning of the school year, and then return travel at
the end of the school year. He pointed out that any additiona

travel was the responsibility of the famly. He noted that sone
students could not afford to return after the Christmas holiday.
He reported that activity fees, including travel for sports,
music events, or simlar, were the responsibility of the
st udent .

8:59:18 AM

CHRI'S REITAN, Superintendent, Galena City School District,
expl ai ned that, although Galena and Nenana had simlar
operational nuances, each had a different focus and program
offering, which allowed for student choices to best fit their
needs. He addressed the question for "skin in the gane," and
pointed out the difficulty for parents to not have their
children at hone. He lauded this selfless conmtnent to offer
the best opportunity to their child. Regardi ng the financial
aspect for "skin in the ganme," he reported that there was a

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2013



student activity fee of $150.00 each per senester. He reported
that occasionally |ocal students in Galena had applied and |ived
in the dormtory for specific personal reasons. He said that
the school district was not funded for these students, but that
it was "best for the famly and best for that particular

student." Directing attention to the aforenentioned handout
titled "Galena Interior Learning Acadeny, Resi dence Life
Revenues and Expenditures,” he noted the difference between

"District of Residence" and "Community" and explained that the
data reflected the District from which the student had

previously attended school, but the Comunity could be the
result of a famly nove after acceptance into the residential
program and was the current hone of the famly. He reported

t hat the graduation data and the AYP were considered
i ndependently, noting that there was 100 percent graduation by
any student who had arrived into the boarding school program as
a freshman. He pointed out that, when students arrived, the AYP
may not indicate proficiency, but by the senior year, if the
student was retained, graduation would occur. He explained that
the application for Galena was conpleted entirely online, and
then an interview was conducted with the parent and the student.
Gal ena had a focus on career and technical education, and that
should be reflected in the application. He said there was not
extensive screening of academ c background. He shared that
Gal ena also had a local high school, but would accept a I ocal
student based on interest and need.

9:07: 30 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if the application process,
specifically the interview aspect, had changed over tine to give
a better feel for the student. She asked whether students were
allowed to solely focus on the vocational education classes, or
were required to al so take other course work.

MR. REITAN replied that the previous paper application process
had been streamined from the back and forth tel ephone calls to
the current online application with a tel ephone interview. He
repeated that it was nobst inportant to ensure that students

would be a good fit in the residence hall. He shared that
students would | eave for interpersonal reasons but not because
of the academ c classes. In response to Representative P.

Wl son, he said that full high school requirenments were in place
for students to conplete the high school graduation requirenent
exam He said that it was inpossible for a student to conplete
the required hours for a technical certificate, such as the
requi renents for cosnetol ogy, and still nmeet the other

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2013



graduation requirenents. He said that nany students would
return for a senester as a postsecondary student, or transition
into another program 1in order to conplete the necessary hours
to qualify for the state boards. He reported that nost students
took at l|east two career technical education (CTE) course
progr ans.

9:12: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the students were allowed a
stipend for postsecondary work.

MR. REITAN replied that postsecondary students paid 100 percent
of the costs.

9:13:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATQN, pointing to the variable |ength program
proposed in the CS for HB 142, asked how that would i npact
school districts, specifically for the ADM fundi ng.

9:15: 02 AM

MR. REITAN replied that the proposed variable I|ength program
woul d not inpact the Galena City School District, as all of the
CTE progranms were |long term

9: 15: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked to clarify whether students were
present for the entire school year, or for the cal endar year.

MR. REITAN stated that the school year began in August and was
conpleted in Muy.

9:16: 13 AM

DR. NORVAN ECK, Superintendent, Northwest Arctic Borough Schoo
District, declared support for the proposed bill, sharing that
the Northwest Arctic Borough School District would apply to
beconme a boarding school district. He stated that, although the
school district planned to primarily offer a full year program
the variable length program could also be offered for senester
length courses such as Process Technology, which prepared
students for trades work in the mnes, the pipeline, and the oil
fields. He declared that a goal was to be a nagnet school
district in order to attract students, and would specialize in

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 13- March 13, 2013



Process Technol ogy, Education, Culinary Arts, and Health Care
trai ni ng. He declared that the Northwest Arctic Borough Schoo

District was the only school district in Alaska wth a post-
secondary technical center, and, after renovation, would serve
both high school and adult students. He pointed out that the
current kitchen and cafeteria were being renodeled into a
teaching kitchen for the culinary arts, which would allow high
school students to graduate with a certificate in Culinary Arts
and be ready for a job. He announced that these variable |ength

prograns were inportant for specific certifications. He
declared his support for the increase to reinbursenent costs, as
the current amount was not sufficient. He stated that rural

Al aska students needed prograns which provided the skills
necessary to be job and career ready. He reported that, as his
school district had five schools with fewer than 3 teaching
positions, it was difficult for these schools to have the
variety of curriculum to offer students the necessary options.
He stated that "the time for boarding facilities for Rural
Al aska has come again."

9:23:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOQUX, referring to the aforenentioned "Gl ena
I nterior Learning Acadeny, Residence Life Revenues and
Expendi tures," pointed out that 18 of the 181 students attending
Galena were from the Northwest Arctic Borough School District,
and she asked for further clarification.

DR. ECK explained that his district did not yet have the
residential program but it was applying. He declared that this
was about choice and options for students, and that Galena
of fered many excellent prograns. He stated that Anchorage and
Mat anuska- Susitna students were some of the only ones in the
state that had viable options close to hone.

9:26:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked to clarify that currently there was
not a residential programin the Northwest Arctic Borough Schoo
District.

DR. ECK explained that the district application for residentia
schooling was currently bei ng consi dered.

9:27:18 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- March 13, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the ADM funding would work for
the variable courses at the proposed magnet school. As students
would only be in attendance for a shorter period, this needed to
be fair to all the schools.

9:28: 47 AM

M KE HANLEY, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (EED), pointed out that, as the Alaska Board O
Education & Early Devel opnent had recently adopted a regul ation
to recognize variable term prograns, a student would not be
funded for a full year, if attending a variable term program
He stated that the regulation only allowed for a boarding
stipend, while the basic student allocation (BSA) remained with
t he student's home district.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that it would only be
stipend funding for the variable term program

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY expressed his agreenent, pointing out that
it was the home school districts which had brought this question
forward.

9:30: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about program opportunities for
urban students, simlar to those provided in Gal ena.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY offered his belief that these prograns were
not available "to the extent that Galena does,” but that
conponents were available in many other districts.

9:31:38 AM

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY, in response to Representative P. WIson,
expl ai ned that these were nonthly stipends for student room and
board. He noted that a one day student count would be perforned
for the wvariable term prograns in October and based on
enrollment this would be the annual average. This regul ation
would also allow for the average nunmber during a full school
year.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked if the State of Al aska woul d pay
for a student to attend any school of choice.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that there were currently statew de
progranms which were open to any students. He stated that the

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -15- March 13, 2013



proposed bill would also allow prograns that were less than a
full year.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON, observing that students from a rura
area could go to any school, questioned if the sane would be
true for urban students, with the State of Al aska paying for
room and board, when it was possible for simlar prograns in
t heir hone area.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that this opportunity was currently
all owed, and that the proposed bill did not change that option
He pointed out that it was unusual for a student to apply from
an urban area.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON countered that the proposed bill did
change that, as the state would now pay $1,230.00 for each
student, which was a substantial increase. She asked if any
school would consider this to be a noney naking venture. She

suggested that an unintended consequence of the proposed bil
could be a greater expense for education to the state.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY expl ained that this reinbursenent was up to
$1,230.00 of the actual cost, and was not changed with the
proposed bill. He offered his belief that the intent was to
provide equity between full year and variable term progranms. He
poi nted out that the travel conponent allowed for one round trip
per student count, based on the average cost for transporting
students to residential boarding schools. He clarified that, as
the funding was received by the school, the district would
determne how to distribute the fund to maintain equity between
the variable termand the full year prograns.

9: 38: 55 AM

V. SYLVESTER directed attention to an earlier question
regarding the expansion of the RFP and the prograns. She
explained that the RFP process allowed for a response in
cooperation with the departnent, an acceptance, and then an
approval for funding by the legislature, which would control the
grow h of the program She asked that the conmm ssioner speak to
t hi s mechani sm

9:40: 02 AM
COW SSI ONER HANLEY explained that the student counts in the

boardi ng prograns were considered for additional needs prior to
the approval of new facilities. After approval, EED would work

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 16- March 13, 2013



with the Governor to include these schools in the Governor's
budget . He declared that there was an obligation for funding,
if a school was approved. He pointed out that the success and
gquality of the school was al ways open for review

9:41:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX shared her concern for a |arge expansion
whi ch had been previously expressed by Representative WIson.
She pointed out that 37 students from urban areas attended
Galena which was 20 percent of the total enrollnment of 181
st udent s.

9:42: 40 AM

CHAIR GATTIS explained that, although there was a l|arge influx
of people noving into the WMatanuska-Susitna area from Rural
Al aska, many students chose to stay in the villages to finish
school .

9:43: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that not very many
institutions would provide a variable length program as the
cost to the district was not supportable. He requested nore
information, if this was the intent of the proposed bill;
however, if this bill did not acconplish this, he questioned why
the bill was being introduced.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said that the school districts had "skin in
the gane,” as the state was not building these schools, and the
school districts would not make noney. He clarified that the
proposed bill allowed for sone basic neasures: a funding
increase to recognize program costs; a variable term program
and, district-w de prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if EED anticipated that the variable
term prograns would be provided on a district-w de basis, as the
BSA had already been allocated to the district for cost
cover age.

COM SSI ONER HANLEY directed attention to the Chugach nodel,
"The Voyage to Excellence,” which had an Anchorage-based
program and brought students for variable term prograns after
contracts to support the students had been established on
district |evels.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -17- March 13, 2013



DR. ECK added that, although his school district had an overal
54 percent graduation rate, students who had taken two or nore
CTE classes in a career pathway had an 83 percent graduation
rate.

9:49: 42 AM

SCOTT BALLARD, Superintendent, Ilditarod Area School D strict,
said that the school district would like to offer an in-district
residential learning center, which would support the smal
school sites and expand the curriculum by offering nore choices
to students, especially in preparation for qualification for the
Al aska Perfornmance Schol arshi p.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked how many schools were in the
district for the residential |earning center to draw students.

MR. BALLARD replied that there were seven schools, in a district
conparable in size to the State of Chio, with about 200 students
district w de. He declared that four of the seven schools had
| ess than 30 students.

9:51: 32 AM

LI SA RIECER, Cook Inlet Tribal Council (CTC), stated that the
Al aska Native organizations were working in cooperation wth
school districts to provide residential conponents. She
decl ared support for the proposed CS for HB 142 by CITC and the
Al aska Federation of Natives (AFN) as there was genera
consensus that nore partnerships would |lead to greater success
for students. She briefly described the CITC program which was
a public-private partnership with the Anchorage School District.
She reported that CITC supplied the room board, and residentia
conponents, while the Anchorage School District provided the
academ ¢ and extra-curricul ar prograns. She expl ained that the
residential program was designed to be an Al aska Native cul ture-
based | eadership program with social and acadenm c support, but
the program was not a therapeutic environment for drug, alcohol,
or enotional issues. She said that 43 percent of the students
arriving in Anchorage were not acconpanied by parents, sharing
that students could be honeless, or have honme disruptions, and
"just need a stable place to live and go to school."” She
pointed out that the Alaska Native graduation rate was 50
percent, conpared to the Anchorage School District general
popul ation rate of 70 percent. She nentioned that the stipend
increase did not cover the entire cost of room and board, and

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 18- March 13, 2013



CITC would be leveraging other nonies to provide this
opportunity and support.

9:57:28 AM

DOREEN LORENZ, Chair, Friends of Jesse Lee Hone, said that the
school was very different than any school in Al aska and would
begin a variable term program in 2014. She described that the
educati on was hands-on, esteem based, and would allow students
to experience different types of vocations, in order to better
determ ne what direction they would like to pursue. She |isted
the opportunities for learning in the Seward area. She said
that this approach would be simlar to the Chugach nodel,
al t hough unique to all other institutions.

9:59: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the nodel would not
require a base student allocation through the school, but that
t he fundi ng woul d be through contracts with school districts.

M5. LORENZ expressed her agreenent.

10: 00: 36 AM

CHAI R GATTIS said that HB 142 bill would be held over.
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 10:00 a. m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -19- March 13, 2013



